American Democracy Legal Fund
455 Massachusetts Avenue, NW
Washington, DC 20001

November 4, 2016

U.S. Office of Special Counsel
Hatch Act Unit

1730 M Street, N.W., Suite 218
Washington, DC 20036-4505

Re:  Hatch Act Violation, Federal Bureau of Investigation Agents
To the Office of Special Counsel:

Pursuant to 5 U.S.C. § 1216 (a)(1)(2), this letter constitutes a formal complaint and request that
the Office of Special Counsel promptly investigate blatant violations of the Hatch Act by
unnamed agents of the Federal Bureau of Investigation (“FBI” or “Bureau”). Publicly available
news reports indicate that FBI agents throughout the Bureau — agents “known to be hostile to
Hillary Clinton” — are using their official positions to leak information to surrogates of the
Trump campaign in order to influence the presidential election.! Such blatant abuse of authority
is a clear violation of federal law and should be investigated immediately. We request the Office
of Special Counsel not only launch an investigation but also take immediate and appropriate
remedial action against the FBI to ensure these violations do not continue through election day.

Over the past week, unnamed FBI sources began leaking information to the media regarding FBI
investigations into Hillary Clinton and the Clinton Foundation.? News reports indicate that FBI
agents were disappointed with FBI Director James Comey’s decision not to press charges against
Clinton over the summer, which has prompted agents to leak information in the days leading up
to the presidential election, specifically to influence the outcome of the election.’ FBI sources
also describe the Bureau as “Trumpland,” and explain that “the reason why they’re leaking is
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they’re pro-Trump.”* According to one FBI source, “a large swath of FBI personnel” consider
Hillary Clinton to be “the antichrist personified.”

What’s more, surrogates for the Donald Trump campaign began publicly hinting that these leaks
were forthcoming even before the FBI leaks began. For example, during an interview with Fox,
Rudy Giuliani explained that the Trump campaign had “a surprise or two that you’re going to
hear about in the next few days. I mean, I’'m talking about some pretty big surprises....We’ve got
a couple of things up our sleeve that should turn this thing around.””® Then, Mr. Giuliani
promptly and publicly attributed Comey’s recent decision to renew the probe into Hillary Clinton
to “the pressure of a group of FBI agents,” alleging “there’s a kind of revolution going on inside
the FBI about the original conclusion [not to charge Clinton] being completely unjustified and
almost a slap in the face to the FBI’s integrity.”” Mr. Giuliani continued: “I know that from
former agents. I know that even from a few active agents.”®

According to news reports, Mr. Giuliani’s security firm employs at least two FBI agents who
were previously employed in the New York office - the same office responsible for discovering
the most recent set of emails.’ “Along with Giuliani’s other connections to New York FBI
agents, his former law firm, then called Bracewell Giuliani, has long been general counsel to the
FBI Agents Association (FBIAA), which represents 13,000 former and current agents.” '* Mr.
Giuliani’s own public statements confirm he has personal relationships with current and former
FBI agents.!!

Under the Hatch Act, public officials are prohibited from using their “official authority or
influence for the purpose of interfering with or affecting the result of an election.”!? According
to testimony from a former Special Counsel, “the Hatch Act [is intended to] keep[] partisan
politics out of the public workplace and prevents those in political power from abusing their
authority to advance partisan political causes.”'® The Department of Justice (“DOJ”) also issued
further guidance on the Hatch Act in March of 2016, specifically noting that “[w]hile always
important, [DOJ employees] should be particularly mindful of these [Hatch Act] rules in an
election year.”!*

However, in direct violation of federal law, FBI agents chose to leak information to individuals
like Mr. Giuliani, in order to interfere with the result of the presidential election. This is a clear
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violation of the Hatch Act. FBI sources confirm that large factions of the Bureau are outwardly
hostile to Hillary Clinton.!® FBI agents were privy to information related to the Clinton
investigation because of their official positions as FBI agents. Accordingly, these agents abused
that position by sharing related information with surrogates for the Trump campaign, like Mr.
Giuliani, who then announced on cable television that the Trump campaign had “things up our
sleeve that should turn this thing around.”'® News reports suggest this information was obtained
in direct violation of federal law.

These facts confirm that at least some FBI agents have violated the Hatch Act by abusing their
positions and leaking information to influence the outcome of the presidential election. We
respectfully request that the Office of Special Counsel investigate these violations immediately
and that appropriate action be taken to enjoin FBI agents from further violations, including
imposing the maximum penalties permitted by law.

Brad Woodhouse

American Democracy Legal Fund
455 Massachusetts Avenue, NW
Washington, DC 20001
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